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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members,
Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Your directors take pleasure in presenting their 2 Annual Report on the business of your
Company, together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March
31, 2023.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
{Amount in Rs. Crore)

Particulars For the Financial Year ended

31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Income 130.37 0.03
Less: Total Expenses 155,45 0.70
Profit /{(Loss) before tax {16.08) (0.68)
Profit /{Loss) After Tax {13.21) (0.68)
Profit / {(Loss) for the year Carried to the Balance Sheet (13.21) (0.68)

2. UPDATE ON THE TMT BAR PROJECT

During the year under review, your Company's state-of-the-art TMT Mill, located at Anjar,
Gujarat was commissioned having capacity of producing ~400 KMPTA of TMT bars and
has started to sell the TMT Bars through E Commerce platform which will help to increase
the reach in the market.

During the year under review, the following milestones were achieved by the Company:

1. Production reached at ~ 22 KMTPA
2. Revenue of ~Rs. 138 Cr.

The operations viability continues to be healthy with its state of the art facility and the
increase in the talent pool.

3. RESERVES AND DIVIDEND
For the period ended 31st March 2023, the Company has not transferred any sum io
Reserve. Further, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended March
31, 2023.

4. DETAILS OF SUESIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSQCIATE COMPANIES

There were no Companies which have become or ceased to be our subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies during the year.
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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

5. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under Report, the Company has not accepted any deposit within the
meaning of the Chapter V to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’). Further, no amount on
account of principal or interest on deposit was outstanding or unclaimed or unpaid as at
the end of the year under Report.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

The Company does not have any equity share with differential rights and hence disclosures
as required in Rute 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014
are not required. The Company has not issued any sweat equity or stock options. The
Company has no Empioyee Stock Cption Scheme,

7. AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors:
M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of 1% Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 6% Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for the financial year
2026-27,

No frauds or instances of misranagement were reporied by the Statutory Auditor under
Section 143 {12} of the Act.

Internal Auditors:

Mis. KPMG Assurance and Consulting Services LLP, Chartered Accountants, is acting as
the Interna! Auditors of the Company.

No frauds or instances of mismanagement were reported by the Internal Auditors under
Section 143 (12} of the Act.

Cost Auditors:

As per the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, the Board of Directors have appointed Ms.
Kiran J. Mehta & Co, Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration Ne.000026) as the Cost
Auditors for the financial year 2023-24 at a remuneration of Rs.1,25,000/- p.a. plus
applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses that may be incurred.

The Board recommends ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for

the year ending on March 31, 2024 by the Members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.
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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

8. AUDITORS' REPORT

Statutory Audit Report given by Mfs. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, read
with the annexure thereto and notes on account referred to in the their Report is self-
explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further comments

8. DIRECTORS AND MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A) Changes in the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel

During the period under review, the following changes took place in the Board of Directors
and the Key Managerial Personnel.-

¢ Mr. Anuj Burakia (DIN: 02840211} resigned as Director on May 20, 2022 on account

of his other commitments;

Mr, Devendra Patil {DIN: 00062784) resigned as Director on July 5, 2022.

Mr. Rahul Yenurkar (DIN: 06802786), who was appointed as an Additional and Whole-
time Director on May 20, 2022, resigned from the office of Whole-time Director on April
7, 2023 as a result of which he ceased to be Director of the Company.

s Mr. Arpit Bhandari was appointed as the Company Secretary and Mr. Sandip Chottara
was appointed as Chief Financial officer of the Company, both effective from May 20,
2022

e Mr. Neeraj Kant (DIN:06598469) was appointed as an Additional and Whole Time
Director w.ef. May 10, 2023, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the ensuing
general meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company
Mr. Harish Gupta (DIN: 07559832) is retiring by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, has been recommended for re-appointment by the Board.

Detaiis about the Directors being appointed/re-appointed are given in the Notice of the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting bheing sent to the members along with the Annual
Report.

10. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

The performance evaluation of the Directors was carried out by the entire Board (excluding
the Director being evaluated) on the basis of a structured guestionnaire which was
prepared after taking inte consideration inputs received from the Directors covering various
aspects of the Board's functioning viz. adequacy of the composition of the Board, time
spent by each of the directars; accomplishment of specific responsibilities and expertise;
conflict of interest; integrity of the Director; active participation and contribution during
discussions and govemance.
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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

For the financial year 2022-23, the annual performance evaluation was carried out by the
Directors and the Board, which included svaluation of the Board, Non-independent
Directors, Execuiive Directors, Quantity, Quality and Timeliness of information to the
Board. All the results were satisfactory.

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company's Board comprises of the required blend of Directors with considerable
experience in diverse fields such as finance, accounts and general management and
business strategy. All the directors are liable to retire by rotation as per the provisions of
the Act.

To have better oversight on the proiect implementation, 13 meetings of the Board of
Directors were held during the reporting financial year on the following dates:

12.04.2022, 29.04.2022, 30.04.2022, 20.05.2022, 14.07.2022, 05.08.2022, 15.09.2022,
16.09.2022, 31.10.2022, 05.12.2022, 18.12.2022, 25.01.2023 and 22.03.2023.

It is confirmed that there is no relationship befween the directors inter-se. None of the
directors held any share in the Company except as the nominea of the holding company
in compliance with the Act.

12. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

a) Detalls of the top 10 employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn and
name of other employees as required pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Nama Dasignati | Remune | Nature of Qualificati | Exp | Date of Age | Last % OF Relativa
an ration employmen | on erie | Commenc Employm | Equity of any
drawn t nce | ement of ent Shares Birectorf
during (Yea | Employm held in Manager
the year rs} ent the of the
Company | Company
Allaka Sudhakar i Assistant |60,00,000 | Permanent MBA 24 | 24.08.22 47 | JSW [spat Nil NA
Vice Marketing Special
Prasident Progucts
Marendra Kumar | General 37,62,090 | Permanent 8.Tech 18 | 04.10.21 41 | PP Rolling Nil MA
Sharma Manager Mechanica Mill
1+ MBA
Operation
)
Bhupesh Asgistant  |19,49,128 | Pemmanent Dipltonta 17 | 21.10.21 39 i Bhushan Mit NA
Kughwaha General Electrical Power &
Manager Steal Ld. .
Amit Chaubey Assistant  |19,00,000 | Permanent MBA 15 1 02.05.22 39 | Electrother Nil NA
General {Marketing m India
Manager ) L_td. -
Bachaspali Das | Assistent |15,60,000 | Permanent Diploma 21 | 20.08.22 47 | Kashmir Nil NA
General Metallurgy Steal
Manager Rolling
Mills
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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

Vishal Bhakne Manager (15,00,000 | Pemanent BE 12 | 18.12.22 38 | Viraj Nii NA
Mechanica Profiles
| Ltd.
Shashank Manager |[11,50,000 { Pemmanent MBA 12 | 05.08.22 37 | KB Ispat Mil NA
Trivedi Finance
Shailendra Manager [11,08,044 | Permanent BE 12 | 01.12.21 39 | virg ik NA,
Kumar Shukla Mechanica Prefiles
1 Lid,
Prashant Kumar | Daputy 10,80,000 | Parmanent B.Tach 13 {17.10.22 35 | Virg il NA
Shamma Manager Electrical Profiles
Lid,
Deepak Kumar Ceputy 10,50,00¢ | Pemmanent MBA 18 | 20.02.23 41 | Jindal Nif MNA
Sharma Manager Steel &
Power
Limited

a}) Whole Time Director (appointed w.e.f. May 20, 2022) of the Company was not in receipt
of any commission from the Company or helding company. However, he was in receipt
of remuneration from the holding Company.

b) No remuneration or perquisite was paid to, and no service contract was entered into
with, or stock options granted to any non-executive Director.

Save and except as disclosed in the financial statements none of the Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel had any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the
Company.

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS MADE / GIVEN
UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE ACT

The investments made by the Company are within the limits prescribed under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details are given in the notes
to the Financial Statements. Further, no loans, guarantees or security were provided by
the Company during the year under raview.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All the transactions with the related parties that were entered into during the year under
report were cn an arm's length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There
were no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

None of the Directors had any pecuniary relationships or transaclions vis-a-vis the
Company.

Disciosures as required under the Act are given in Form AOC-2 annexed as Annexure 1
to this Report.
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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

15, ANNUAL RETURN

As the Company does not have its own website, the Annual Return in Form MGT-7 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is not being hosted. As and
when the website of the Company is developed, the Form MGT-7 shall be uploaded in the
website.

16, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(A} Conservation of energy-

() |the steps taken or impact on | Machanical De-scaler introduced at Induction
conservation of energy Heater for removing the Scale on billet surface
far proper hillet temperature measurement
resulting in low consumption of power from
induction heater for heating of Biliet. Average
saving achieved 35 KWH/MT.,

(i) [the steps taken by the i LSHS fuel to be tilized in Reheating furnace
company for ufilising alternate | instead of LDO/NG to reduce the cost.

sources of energy,;

(iii) | the capital investment on |NIL
energy conservation
aquipment's;

(B) Technology absorption-

(i} | The efforis made towards | Load management Cum EMS System
techneology absorption introduced for Optimum power demand
utilization of Steel Melt Shop and Anjar TMT
steel and sharing of Unused demand of ATS
with Steel Mell Shop.

(i) | The benefits derived like | With the above System, the Company saved
product improvement, cost | the Ul power of 10MWH / Day.

reduction, product
deveiopment or  import
substitution;

{ii} | In case of imported technology
{a) | The details of technology | Nil
imported
{b) | The year of import NA
{c) | Whether the technology been | NA
fully absorbed. If not fully
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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

absorbed, areas  where
absorption has not taken
place, and the reasons
thereof:

(d) | The expenditure incurred on | NA
Research and Development

Total foreign exchange used and earned:
Used : USD 92,055.00
Earned : Nil

47. INTERNAL CONTROLS & RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has adequate systems for risk management and intemal contral, which are
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations.

The controls were tested during the year under Report and no reportable material
weaknesses either in their design or operations were observed. In other observations,
appropriate corrective actions were taken as advised by the Board.

At the beginning of each financial year, a risk-based annual audit plan is rolied out after it
is approved by the Board. The audit plan aims to evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of
the internal control system{s) and compliance(s) thereof, robustness of internal processes,
policies and accounting procedures, compliance with laws and regulations.

The Internal Audit is carried by independent external audit firm consisting of qualified
accountants, domain & industry experts, fraud risk and information technology specialists.

Based on the reports of internal auditor, corrective actions are taken, wherever required.
Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presenied to the Board.

Broad categories of risks which may threaten the existence of the Company are
Commedity Price Risk, Increased Competition, Business Interruptions, Maintenance Risk,

Non-availability of skilled manpower.

18. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL. MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Board has adopted vigit mechanism in the form of Whistle Blower Policy, to deal with
instances of fraud or unethical behavior or misconduct etc. and no persons had been
denied access to the Chairman. The Policy provide adequate safeguard against
victimization and even the disclosures expressed anonymously may be considered.
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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

19. MISCELLANEQUS DISCLOSURES

During the vear under report, there was no change in the general nature of business of
your Company.

No material change has occurred or commitment made which would have affected the
financial position of your Company between the end of the financial year of your Company
to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

No significant and material order was passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which
wouid have impacted the going concern status and your Company’s operations in future,

Your Company has not made any provision of money for the purchase of, or subscription
for, shares in your Company or its holding comparny, to be held by or for the benefit of the
employees of your Company and hence the disclosure as required under Rule 16(4) of
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not required.

The Board of Directors affirm that the Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (SS1 and
8S52) relating {o Meetings of the Board and its Commiftees and general meetings.

There are no proceedings, either filed by the Company or filed against the Company,
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as amended, before the
National Company Tribunal or other Courts as at the end of the financial year 2022-23,

The Company has complied with the provisions relafing to the constitution of internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (*POSH Act"). Disclosure of number of complaints
filed, disposed of and pending in relation io the POSH Act as on the end of the financial
year under Report are as under:

» number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil
» number of complaints disposed of during the financial year : Nil
¥ number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil

20. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Act, your directors hereby confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;
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¢. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;
and

f. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicakle laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

21. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors would like to thank all stakeholders, customers, bankers, employees,
government authorities, contractors, suppliers and associates of your Company for the support
received from them during the year.

For and on behalf of the Beoard of Directors

e akdod— ~
hogllele Mg

Mumbai Whole Time Director Director
May 22, 2023 DIN:06598469 DIN; 07559832
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ANJAR TMT STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED

Form No. ADC-2

Annaxure 1

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contractsfarrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section {1} of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso ithereto.

1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis.
Not applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at army’s length basis :

Sr. | Name(s) of the | Duration of Salient terms of the contracts or | Date(s) Amouni | Amount
No. | related party the contracts | arrangements or transactions of paid as {Rs.
and nature of ! including the value, if any approval | advance | Crore}
relationship arrangements by the s, if any:
{ transactions Board
Holding Company .
1 Welspun Corp FY 2022-23 | Purchase of Raw matariat in NA Nit 37.91
Limited { ordinary course businass and at
Holding arms' length
Company) Job Work charges in ordinary NA Nil 14.45
course business and at arms' length
Lease of land parcel for 30 year NA Mil 0.23
duration, lease rent fixed at arms’
kength
Sale of scrap al arms’ fength NA il 4.21
Sale of stock in trade at arms’ NA il 38.21
length
Other entities over which key management parsonnel or relatives of such personne] exercise significant influence
ar contrel
2 Welspun FY 2022-23 | Purchase of power for captive NA Nij 8.60
Capiive Power consumption at arms” length
Generation Lid
For and ¢n behalf of the Board of Directors
/)\_f, Lh &) . % n
Meeraj Kant sh Gupta™
Mumbai Whole Time Director Director

May 22, 2023

DIN: 06588469

DIN: 07559832

Page 10 of 10

Registered Address: Welspun City, Survey No. 650, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, District Kutch, Gujarat 370 110, India
Email iD:

retary atspl@welspun.

T:+91 22 6613 6000

Corporate [dentification Number: U27209G]2021PTC122227




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2023, and total comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. |
|
We have nothing to report in this regard. )

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, 252, Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Park, Dadar (West)
Mumbai - 400 028
T: +91 (22) 66691500, F: +91 (22) 66547804 / 07

Registered offics and Head office: Sucheta Bhawan, 114 Vishnu Digambar Marg, Hew Delhi 110 062

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converied inio Price Walerhouse Chanered Accountants LLP {a Limited Liability Parinership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-3001)
wilh effect from July 25, 2014 Post its co ion to Price Walerhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAIl ragigtration number 1s 072754N/NS0001 6 {JICA) registration
number before conversion was 012754N}




Price ﬂ@}%rhpgggﬂChartered Accountants LLP

Indepen

uditor’s

To the Members of Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 2 of 11

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
financial statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7-

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s

—
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To the Members of Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 3 of 11

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Aet.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position as at March 31, 2023.

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2023 under
the applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contract. The Company did not have any derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2023.
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iil.

iv.

V.

Vi

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2023.

{a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer
Note 43(d)(vii) to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 43(d)(vii} to the financial
statements); and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
which provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and
related matters in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the
Company only with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting
under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), is currently not applicable.

12. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the

Company.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
| AP
Ali Akbar
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 22, 2023 Membership Number: 117839

UDIN: 23117839BGSNGO7075
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2, The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”™). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
hoth applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial contrels with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of finaneial-statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by ICATL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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Ali Akbar
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 22, 2023 Membership Number: 117839

UDIN: 23117839BGSNGO7075
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i (a)

(b)

(e}

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the management according to
a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the property, plant and equipment has been
physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in
Note 3(a) and 3(c) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

{d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use

(e)

)

assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our
commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered valuer, or
specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net
carrying value of each class of property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets}
or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and
therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately
disclosed the details in its financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory [excluding stocks with third parties] has been
conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion,
the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of
inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were
net 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has
not submitted quarterly returns or statements with such banks for the quarters ended June
2022 and September 2022 and accordingly, to that extent, the question of our commenting
on whether these returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of
account of the Company does not arise. The Company has filed quarterly returns or
statements with such banks, for the quarters ended December 2022 and March 2023, which
are not in agreement with the unaudited books of account as set out below. (Also Refer Note
43(d)(ii} to the financial statements).
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Rs. in Crores
Name of | Aggregate | Nature of Quarter Amount | Amount | Differ Reasons for
the Bank/ working Current ended disclosed as per ence difference
Financial capital Asset as per books of
Institution limits offered as quarterly | account
sanctioned Security return/
statement
State Bank 284.00 | Trade 31-Dec-22 24.14 (5.15) | 290.29 | Difference is on
of India, Receivable, account of
IDFC First Trade 31-Mar-23 (33.62) | (39.00) 5.38 | finalisation entries
Bank Payables passed after the
and submission to the
Inventory bank.

iii. (a) The Company has made investments in one company. The Company has not granted secured
/ unsecured loans / advances in nature of loans, or stood guarantees, or provided security to
any parties.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, the terms and conditions under which such
investments were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(¢) The Company has not granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, or

stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, to this extent, the reporting

under clause 3(iii)(¢), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made.
The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Act.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under

sub-section (1)} of Section 148 of the Act for any of the produects of the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues, including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities,

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.
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viii.

ix. {a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

x. (a)

(b)

xi. (a}

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained, except for Rs. 0.49 crores
which is pending for utilisation and are included under cash and cash equivalents. (Also
Refer Note 43(d)(xdii) to the financial statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companica during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clauses 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xi)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(¢) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii.  The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is
not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly,
to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV, The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section
192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group has three CICs as part of the Group as detailed in Note 43(¢c) to the financial
statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided
by the management is accurate and complete.

xvii.  The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 11.43 crores in the financial year and of Rs.
0.55 crores in the immediately preceding financial period April 23, 2021 to March 21, 2022,

xvili.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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xix.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios (Also refer Note 43(a) to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the aundit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. Also Refer Note 43(b} to the financial
statements.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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Ali Akbar

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 22, 2023 Membership Number: 117839

UDIN: 23117839BGSNGO7075
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Aniar TWMT Steel Private Limited
Balance sheet
(Al arnounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Motes As at As at
Mareh 31, 2023 March 21, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Praperty, plant and equipment 3ia) 158.29 -
Capital work-in-progress 3{b) 0.91 95.08
Right-of-use assets 3(c) 3.69 3.82
Intanglble assets 3(a) 0.59 -
Financial assets
Investments 4 1.89 -
Other financial assets 5 268 1.49
Deferred tax Assets {net} 30(a} 288 -
Other non-currant assets -] 0.04 21.93
Total non-current assets 170.97 122.32
Current assets
Inventaries 7 64.55 E
Financial assets
Investments -] 38.57 b
Trade receivablas 9 28.76 -
Cash and cash equlvalents 10 4.68 252
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 11 363 =
Other current assets 12 40.40 =
Current tax assets 13 125 0.03
Total current assets 181.85 2.55
Total assets 352.82 12487
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Eauity share capital 14 (a) 2001 20.01
Instrurnants entirely equity in nature 14 {b} 44.99 24.82
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 15 (14.36) {1.06)
Other reserves 15 {0.03) -
Total equity 50.61 43.77
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 133,12 70.28
Lease Lizbilities 3{c) 392 3.82
Other financial liabilities 19(a} 0.12 -
Provisions 17 0.07 0.01
Total non-current liabilities 127.23 74.11
Current liabilities
Financial lNabilities
Borrowings i€ 825 0.38
Lease Liabilities 3{ch 0.22 0.42
Trade pavables
total outstanding duas of micro and small enterprises 13 105 -
total outstanding dues other than above 13 147 59 0.04
Other financial liabilities 19¢{b} 7.01 5.96
Provisions 17 0.10 0.03
Other current liabilities 20 10.76 0.16
Total current liabilities 174.98 5.99
Total liabilities 302.21 81.10
Total equity and liabilities 352.82 124.87

The above balance sheat should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Repistrition No: 012754N / N500016
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Aniar TMT Steel Private Limited
Staternent of profit and loss
fAfl amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Forthe Year ended For the Peried from
on March 31, 2023 April 23, 2021 to
March 31,2022
Revenue from cperations 21 138.88 -
Other income 22 0.49 0.03
Total income 139.37 0.03
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 114.62 -
Purchases of stock-in-trade 23 33.94 -
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade 25 {26.57) -
& finished goods
Employee benefit expense 26 4.04 0.10
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 4.27 0.12
Other expenses 28 16.46 0.14
Finance costs 29 8.69 0.34
Total expenses 155.45 0.70
Loss before tax 16.08) {0.67)
Income tax expense
- Current tax 30(h) - -
- Deferred tax 30(a) 2.87)
Total income tax expense 12.871 -
Loss after tax for the vear / period (A} i13.211 10.62%
Other comprehensive income {B)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Deferred gains/ (losses) on cash flow hedges (net} 15 0.04 -
Income tax relating to this item 30(a) {0.01} -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obfigations 15 0.02 -
Income tax relating to this item 30{a) -* =
Total comprehensive loss for the year f period (A) + (B) {13.16) {0.67)
Earnings / (Loss) per equity share
- Basic and diluted loss per share {Rs.) 38 {6.60} {5.29)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

* amount is below the rounding norms adopted by the Company.,
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our repont of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Regi;tratiun No: 012754N / N500016
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Anjar TMT 5teel Private Limited
Statement of cash flaws
(Al amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise

41

For the Period from

For the Yaar ended
April 23, 2021 to
on Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax {16.08) {0.67)
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-cf-use assets 437 0.12
Interest expenses 8.69 0.34
Unrealised net exchange differances Q.70 -
Interest income from fixed deposits [0.16) (0.03)
Fair valuation gain on investment measured at fair valve through profit and loss [0.32) -
Met gain on sale of current investments [0.01) -
{2.91) (0,24}
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
{Increase| f Decrease in other non-current financial assets (0.09) (0.15)
{Increase) / Decrease in other non-current assets 947 (9.47]
{Increase] / Decrease in inventories [64.56] -
{Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (28.76) -
{Increase} / Decrease in other current assets {40.40) -
Increase f [Decrease} in trade payables 14848 0.04
Increase / [Decrease} in other non-current financial liabllities 0.1z -
Increase / {Decrease) in other current liabilities 10.60 0.16
Increase f [Decrease) in provisions 0.13 0.04
Tatal changes In operating assets and liabilities 31.99 (9-38)
Cash flows from / {used in) operations 32.08 (9.62)
Tax deducted at source {1.22) {0.03)
et cash flows from / {usad In} operating activities [A) 30.86 (9.65)
8} Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including Capital work-in-progi {53.61) {100.55)
Investment in aquity shares {1.68) -
Intarest income from fixed deposits 0.16 0.03
Purchase of current investments {42.45)
Proceeds from sales/ redemption of current i 1 ts 4.01 -
Investment in fixed deposits {nat} {4.73) {1.34)
Net cash flows from / {used in) investing activities (&) {98.30} {101.85)
€} Cash flaws from financing activities
1551ie of equity share tapital = 0.01
Issue of Preference share capital 2017 -
Issue of 6.2%% Optionally Convertible Debenturas (OCDs| N 20.00
Issue of 6.50% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {CCDs} - 24.82
Issue of 5% Non Convertible Debentures - 3.00
Redemption of 5% Non Convertible Dabentures - [3.00)
Share issue expenses [0.11) ©.39)
Loan from Bank 60.71 70.66
Interest paid [10.75) [1.07)
Principal 2l 5 of lease pay t [0.42) -
Met cash flows from / {used in) financing activities {C} 69.60 114.03
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A-+8+C) 216 252
252
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year f period (refer note 10) 4.68 2.52
Non-cash Investing activities:
Acquisition of right-of-use assets {Refer note 2ic)) - 3.05

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the statement of cash flows referred to in cur report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No: 012754 f NS00016
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Pariner Director
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Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity
fAll amounts in Rupees crore, uniegss otherwise stated}

. Equity share ¢apital

Particulars Notes Amount
Balance as at April 23, 2021 -
Changes in equity share capital during the period 14{a) 2001
Balance as at March 31, 2022 20.01
Changes in equity share capital during the year 14{a} -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 20.01
. Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
7.75% Convertible Non-cumulative Optionally Redeemable Preference Shares ['CORPS')
Particulars Notes Amount
Balance as at April 23, 2021
Changes in CORPS during the period 14(b) 24.82
Balance as at March 31, 2022 24.82
Changes in CORPS during the year 14(b) 20.17
Balanee as at March 31, 2023 44.99
Dther equity {refer Note 15}
Reserves and surplus Other reserve
Total other equity
Retained Cash flow hedging
Eamings resefve
Balance as at April 23, 2021 = - -
Loss for the period [0.67] - {0.67)
Share Issue expenses (0.39) - (0.39)
Total for the period (1.06) - (1.06}
Balance as at March 31, 2022 {1.06} - {1.06)
Loss for the year {13.20) - {13.20}
Share issue expenses (0.11} - {0.11)
Qther comprahenslve incomes 0.02 - 0.02
Hedging loss transferred to cash flow hedging reserve - (0.03) (0.03)
Total for the year (13.29) {0.03) (13.32)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 {14.35) {0.03) (14.38}

The ahove statement of cha

es in eguity should be read in coniunction with the accompanving notes.

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date,

For Prite Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No: 012754N / N500016
|. \oor
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Ali Akbar f
Partner
Membership No. 117839 DIN: 07559832
Flace: Mumbai
Sandi ttara
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbal

Date: May 22, 2023 Date: May 22, 2023
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Whole-time Director
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Company Secretary
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Aniar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Background

Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited {the "Company") is a Company limited by shares incorporated on April 23, 2021 and domiciled in India. Anjar TMT
Steel Private Limited is engaged in manufacturing of TMT Bars,

The registered office of the Campany and its principal place of business is at Survey No. 650, Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Kutch,
Gujarat - 370110. The company has commenced its commercial operations from July 21, 2022

These financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of directors on May 22, 2023.

The Financiat Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees {INR}, which is the Company’s functional currency. all financial information presented
in INR has been rounded off to the nearest two decimals of crore unless otherwise stated.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a) Basis of preparation
{i}y Compliance with ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act") [Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.
{ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and on a historical cost basis, except for the following items:

tems Measurement Basis

Net defined benefit {asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligations

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

{including derivatives instruments}

{iii} Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle {i.e 12 months) and other criteria
set out in Schedule 11 {Division 1) to the Act.

{iv} Use of Going Concern assumption

The Holding Company has approved a funding plan for investment in the Company. The management has made an assessment on the basis of the
financial ratios ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial Habilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and has not noted any material uncertainty that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. Basis this, the Company has prepared its financial statements on a going concern basis.

{v) New and amended standards adopted by the company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated March 23, 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) amendment Rules,
2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective April 1, 2022, These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

{vi) New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules,
2023 (the ‘Rules’} which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective April 1, 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments to Ind AS notified
by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company's accounting policy
already complies with the now mandatory treatment.




Aniar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{b} Segment reporting

The chief operating decision makers are the Board of Directors of the Company. The directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and
position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker.

{c) Foreign currency translation
{i} Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates [the ‘functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee, which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

{ii} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or Yoss, Fareign exchange diffesences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are
presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
profit and loss on a net basis within other income/ other expenses as applicable.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

{d} Revenue Recognition
The Company derives revenue principally from sale of TMT Bar.

The Company recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in accordance with the provisions of contract with the customer. This is
achieved when control of the product has been transferred to the customer, which is generally determined when title, ownership, risk of
obsolescence and loss pass to the customer and the Company has the present right to payment, all of which occurs at a point in time upon shipment
or delivery of the product. The Company considers freight activities as costs to fulfil the promise to transfer the related products and the customer
payrments for freight costs are recorded as a component of revenue.

A refund Kiability {included in other current liabilities} is recognised for expected discaunts payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end
of the reporting peried.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the paint in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

In certain customer contracts, freight services are treated as a distinct separate performance obligation and the Company recognises revenue for such
services when the performance obligation is completed.

The Company considers the terms of the contract in determining the transaction price. The transaction price is based upon the amount the Company
expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring of promised goods and services to the customer after deducting incentive programs, included
but not fimited to discounts, volume rebates, etc.

Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government.




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{e} Contract assets and contract liabilities
When the Company performs a service or transfers a good in advance of receiving consideration, it recognises a contract asset or receivable.

A contract asset is a Company's right ta consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Company has transferred to a customer. If the
Company transfers control of goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration, the Company records a contract asset when
the nature of the Company’s right to consideration for its performance is other than passage of time. A contract asset will be classified as a receivable
when the Company’s right to consideration is unconditional (that is, when payment is due only on the passage of time).The Company shall assess a
contract asset for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 109, Impairment of a contract asset is measured, presented and disclosed on similar basis as
other financial asset in nature of trade receivable within the scope of Ind AS 109, The Company discloses contract assets under "Other Assets”,

The Company recognises a contract fiability if the customer’s payment of consideration precedes the Company’s performance. A contract liability is
recognised if the Company receives consideration (or if it has the unconditional right to receive cansideration) in advance of performance.
The Company discloses contract liabilities under "Other Liabilities”.

{fi Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company
will comply with all attached conditions.

Export incentives and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions and the
incentive will be received.

Grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is that an entity qualifying for them should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire long-term assets. Grants related to income are government grants other than those related to assets.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate and presented within other operating income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current Yiabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other operating income. In case of
disposal of such property, plant and equipment, related Government Grants included in the liabilities are written back and charged to the statement
of profit and loss.

{g) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in India.
Management periodically cvaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect te situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. It estahlishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

peferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax hases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
he available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority, Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

".:L'_.




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{h) Leases

As a Lessee

The Company leases various lands. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of thirty years but may have extension options as described in
note 3(c}. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following
lease payments, as applicable:

 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

+ variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

= amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

» the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that aption, and

» payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payment to he made under reasonably certain extension optiens are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar vatue to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost, The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following (as applicable);

+ the amount of the initial measurement of lease habifity

s any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

* any initial direct costs, and

* restoration costs.
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term {including extension cansidering reasonable
certainty} on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful Tife.
Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or (oss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

{i) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three manths or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, {if any) are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet.

(i) Trade recelvable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects company’s
unconditional right to consideration {that is, payment is due only on the passage of time}. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction
price as they do nat contain significant financing components. The company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

{k} Inventory

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials
and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of
inventories alse include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual
itemns of inventory an the basis of weighted average basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale. )V 5‘_)
}, N
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Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{l) Financlal Instruments

(A} Investment and other financial assets
{iy Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through comprehensive income, or through profit or loss); and

thase measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

{ii) Recognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the company commits to purchase or sale
the financial asset.

{iit}y Measurement

At Initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component) at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction casts of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of

the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

» Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other Income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other income or other expenses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income {FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and lass. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in QCI is reclassified from equity to profit or Joss and recognised in other income or other expenses as applicable. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through profit or Joss [FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOC) are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other income or other expenses (as applicable} in the period in
which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and lasses on equity investments in other comprehensive incame, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or Joss
following derecognition of investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other income or other expenses (as applicable) in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses {and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOC) are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.




Anijar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(v} Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FYOCI debt
instruments. The impairment methodalogy applied depends on whether there has heen 3 significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

{v} Derecognition of Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

+ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

« retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or
more recipients,

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of awnership of the
financlal asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

{vi} Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest income on
financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FYOCI is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset {after deduction of the loss allowance).

Dlvidends

Dividends are received from financial assets at fair value through profit or boss and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or loss
when the right 10 receive payment is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

{B} Financial Habilities

{i} Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction (in case of financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss), that
are directly attributable to the issue of financial liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outflow (including all fees paid, transaction cost,
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

{ii} Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the eriginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.




Anlar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{C) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneousty. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

{m) Derivatives and hedging actlvities
In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate, the Company enters into forward and interest rate swap contracts and other
derivative financial instruments. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market to their fair
value at the end of each reporting period.

The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if 5o, the nature of
the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated.

The Company designates their derivatives as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions
and variable interest rate risk associated with borrowings (cash flow hedges}.

The Company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the ecanomic relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items
including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in cash flows of hedged items. The Company documenis its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions at the inception of each hedge refationship.

The full £air value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is mare than
12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

{i} Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in the other
comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item on a present
value basis from the inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other
income or other expenses (as applicable).

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the Company generally designates the full change in fair value of the forward
contract {including forward points) as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains and losses relating to the effective portion of the change in fair
value of the entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity.

Amounts accurulated in equity are reclassified to profit or lass in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (such as inventory), both the deferred hedging gains and losses
and the deferred time value of the deferred forward contracts, if any are included within the initial cost of the asset.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
deferred gain or lass in equity at that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately reclassified to profit or loss within other income or other expense [as
applicable]. If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective remains unchanged and the
hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument
or the volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is
calculated and accounted for in statement of profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.
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{ii} Derlvatives that are not designated as hedges

The Company enters into derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss and are included in other income or other expenses (as applicable}.

{n) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 180 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initlally at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method

{o} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
aconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Cost of capital work-in-progress (‘CWIP') comprises amount paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other assets outstanding
as of each balance sheet date and construction expenditures, other expenditures necessary for the purpose of preparing the CWIP for its intended use
and barrowing costs incurred before the qualifying asset is ready for intended use. CWIP is not depreciated until such time as the relevant asset is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method to allocate the cost of the asset, net of their residual values, over the estimated useful life of the
assets as given below. These estimated useful fives are in accordance with those prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in
respect of plant and machinery wherein the estimated useful lives are different than those under Schedule () to the Companies Act, 2013 based on a
technical evaluation done by the Management.

Assets Estimated useful lives
Buildings 30 years

Ptant and machinery 5 - 20 years

Office and other eguipments 3-6years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computers 3 years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into account commercial and
technological cbsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by compasing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other income/
other expenses (as applicable).

{p) Intangible assets

{A} Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite usefut lives acquired by the Company are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
tosses. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

{B) Amortisation methods and periods
Intangible assets comprise of computer software which is amortised on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life over a period of five years
which is based on a technical evaluation done by the Management.
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{q) Impairment of asset

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually far impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
periad.

{r} Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs} and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or alf of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liahilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit or loss as other income or other expenses {as applicable}.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability
{debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measurad as the difference batween the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowing are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting
period with the effect that the Kability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of
the breach.

{s) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized
during the period of time that is required to complete prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that are necessarily
take a substantiat period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
{t} Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

i} Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the liketihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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ii} Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
accurrence or nan-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required 1o settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannet be
made.

iii) Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

{u) Employee benefits

{i} Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 manths after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee henefit obligations in
the balance sheet.

{ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for earned leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service. It is therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments 1o be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the
reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current provisions in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

{iii} Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employee's pension scheme,

Deferred benefit plan - Gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuary using the projected unit credit method. Gratuity
liaility is wholly unfunded.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. The cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and Josses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. Thay are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance
sheet. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit
or loss as past service cost.

Defined contributlon plans

Provident fund and employee pension scheme

The Company pays provident fund and employee pension scheme contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The
Company has no further payment obligations once the contrlbutions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
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{v) Contributed Equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

{w)} Earning/ (Loss) per share
{i} Basic earning/(loss) per share
Basic earning/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing:
the profit/loss attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

{ii) Diluted earning/{loss) per share
Diluted earning/{loss) per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earning/(lass) per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares; and

the weighted average number of additional equity shares that woufd have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all difutive potential
equity shares,

{x) instruments Entirely Equity in Nature

Instruments entirely equity in nature issued by the Company comprises of convertible and optionally redeemable preference shares. These
instruments have such terms and conditions that qualify them for being entirely equity in nature based on the criteria given in Para 16 of Ind AS 32
"Financial instruments- Presentation". Company assesses the terms and conditions specific to each instrument for deciding whether they are entirely
equity in nature. This is recognised and included in shareholder's equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently re-measured.

{y) Rounding of amounts

The Company in the current year that ended March 2023, has changed its rounding off denomination to crores from millions in order to make it more
useful to users of financial statements. Accordingly, the figures of the comparative year have also been changed to give this effect. Further, the said
change isin line with Schedule 11l of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 2: Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs 1o exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than these originally assessed.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimation of useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment: {refer note 3{a} }

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant propartion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and
residual values of Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financiat year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life,
such as changes in technology.

Recognition of deferred assets {refer note 30}

The company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses of the company. The company has concluded that the deferred tax
assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on the approved business plans and budgets. The company is expected to
generate taxable income from 2024 onwards. The losses can be carried forward for a period of 8 years as per local tax regulations and the company
expects to recover the losses.
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Note 3 (a}: Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible assets

Buildings

Plant and
machinery

Office and
other
equipments

Computers

Furniture
and fixtures

Total PPE

Intangible
assets
{Computer
Softwarel

Period ended on March 31, 2022
Gross Carrying Value

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Accumulated depreciation / amartisation

Closing accumulated depreciation / amortisation as at March 31, 2022

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Year ended on March 31, 2023
Gross Carrying Value

Opening gross carrying amount
Additions
Disposals

36.29

125,31

0.47

0.27

008

162.42

059

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

36.29

125.31

0.47

0.27

0.08

162.42

0.59

Accumulated depreciation / amortisation

Opening accumulated depreciation / amortisation
Depreciation / amortisatien charge during the year
Disposals

0.50

3.26

0.02

0.05

4.13

Closing accumulated depreciation / amortisation as at March 31, 2023

0.80

3.26

.02

0.05

4.13

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

35.49

122.05

0.45

0.22

158.29

0.59

* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
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Note 3 (b): Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Amount

As at April 23, 2021 -

Addition 95.08

Capitalisation =

As at March 31, 2022 95.08

Addition 63.25

Capitalisation {162.42)

As at March 31, 2023 0.91

Ageing of Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023

Amaount in CWIP for a period of
Capital work-in-progress Less than 1 han 3
prog 1-2 years 2-3 years fvoreithah Total
year years
Project related to TMT bar manufacturing unit 0.01 - - - 0.91
Ageing of Capital work-In-progress as at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital work-In-pro, han 1 M
p progress Less than 1-2 years 2.3 years ore than 3 Total
year vears
Project related to TMT bar manufacturing unit 95.08 - 95.08

Notes:

{i} For property, plant and equipment mortgaged as security, refer note 16.
{ii) Capital work in progress comprises of assets under constructions at Anjar

(iii) Contractual obligations: Refer note 37 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

{v} There are no projects which are temporarily suspended.
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Note 3{c) : Leases

{i} Amounts recognized in balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

As at As at
Right-of-use Assets
gh March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Leasehold Land 3.69 3.82
Total Right-of-use Assets 3.09 3.82
Lease liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current 3.92 382
Current 0.22 0.42
Total Lease liabilities 4.14 4,24

Addition to the right-of-use assets during the current period were Rs. Nil {March 31, 2022 Rs. 3.95)
The Company has leased land for a period of 30 years.

Extension option is included in leasehold land contract of Company, These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
assets used in the company's operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable by the Company and the

respective lessor.
{ii} Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of Profit & loss shows the following amount relating to leases

For the Year ended on
March 31, 2023

For the Period from April
23, 2021 to March 31, 2022

Depreciation charge of Right-of-use assets {refer note 27)
Leasehold Land 0.14

0.12

Total 0.14

0.12

For the Year ended on
March 31, 2023

For the Period from April
23, 2021 ta March 31, 2022

Interest and finance charges on lease liabilities (refer note 29}
Leasehold land 0.32

0.29

Total 0.32

0.29

The total cash outflow for the leases for the year ended March 31, 2023 was Rs. 0.42 (period from April 23, 2021 to March 31, 2022 was Nil).

Note 4; Non-current investments (refer note 31) As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 1, 2022

Investments in equity instruments (fully paid up)
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss

Unquoted

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited 1.29
1,47,690 (March 31, 2022: Nil} equity shares of Rs.10 each

Total investment in equity instruments 1.89
Total non-current investments 1.89

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1.89
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments -

T
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Note 5: Other non current financlal assets As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Margin money deposits with maturity of more than twelve months 244 1.34

{including interest accrued) (refer note below)

Security Deposits 0.24 0.15

Total other non current financial assets 2.68 1.49

Note: Fixed deposits of Rs. 2.44 {(March 31, 2022: Rs. 1.34) are earmarked against term loan taken from banks.

Mote 6 : Other Non-current assets
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Capital advances 0.04 12.46
Balance with statutory authorities - 9.47
Total other non-current assets 0.04 21.93

Note 7: Inventories
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Raw materials 35.02
Stores and spares 2.97 -
Finished goods 26.57
Total inventories 64.56

MNote: Details of inventories in transit included above
Raw materials 7.83

Total inventories in transit 7.83 -

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to INR 2.02 (March 31, 2022 — nil). These were recognised as an
expense during the year and included in ‘changes in value of inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade & finished
goods’ in the statement of profit and loss.

fNote 8: Current Investments
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022

Investment in mutual funds
Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss

Unquoted

1,403.56 {(March 31, 2022: Nil) units of SBI Overnight Fund Direct Growth Plan 0.51 -
108,025.28 {March 31, 2022: Nil) units of SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth Plan 38.06

Total investment in mutual funds 38.57 -
Total non-current investments 38.57

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof -
Aggregate amount ¢f unquoted investments (at net asset value) 38.57 -
Aggregate amount of impxirment in the value of investments
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Note 9 : Trade Receivables

As at Asat
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables from contract with customers — related parties (refer note 35) 28.76 -
Less: allowance for doubtful debts -
Total Trade receivables 28.76 -
Ageing for trade receivables as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
L 6 6 month
Unbilled Not due ess than onthsto 1 1-2years 2 -3 years Maore than 3 years Total
months year
Undisputed trade receivables
considered good - 21.78 6.98 - - = - 28.76
Total - 21.78 6.98 = - - - 28.76

Note:
(i) There are no disputed trade receivables as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

{ii) There are no trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk or credit impaired.
{iii) The Company’s trade receivable do not carry a significant financing element. Accordingly the Company has adopted a simplified approach for measurement of expected credit loss.

M

/

Y i
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WNote 10 : Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 4.68 2.00
- Demand draft in hand - 0.51
Cash on hand - 0.01
Total cash and cash equivalents 4.68 2,52
Note 11: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Margin money deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than 3.63 -
twelve months {including interest accrued)
Total Current bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3.63 -
Note: Fixed deposits of Rs. 3.63 {March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil) are earmarked with banks.
Note 12: Other current assets
As at As at
March 31,2023  #arch 31, 2022
Balance with statutory authorities 34.06 -
Prepaid expenses 0.64 -
Advance to suppliers 2.06
Government grant receivable 364 =
Total other current assets 40.40
* amount is below the reunding off norm adopted by the company.
Note 13: Current tax assets
As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Opening balance 0.03 -
Add: Tax deducted at source 1.22 0.03
Less: Current Tax payable for the period -
Total of current tax assets 1.25 0.03
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Note 14: Equity share capital and instruments entirely equity in nature

14{a) Equity Share capital

{i) Authorised equity share capital

As at April 23, 2021

Increase during the period (refer note 42{a)
As at March 31, 2022

Increase during the yaar

As at March 31, 2023

{1i) Movement in equity share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

As at April 23, 2021

Issued during the period {refer note 42(a)}
As at March 31, 2022

Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2023

{iif} Terms and rights attached to Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each hold

Number of Shares  Parvalue Amount
2,00,10,000 10.00 20.01
2,00,10,000 10.00 20,01
2,00,10,000 10.00 20.01

Number of Shares  Par value Amount
2,00,10,000 10.00 20.01
2,00,10,000 10.00 20.01
2,00,10,000 10.00 20.01

er of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend

when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{iv} Shares of the Company held by holding company

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
MNo. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Welspun Corp Limited, including nominees 2,00,10,000 100.00% 2,00,10,000 100.00%
{v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Welspun Corp Limited {the 'holding company'), including nominees 2,00,10,000 100.00% 2,00,10,000 100.00%
(vi) Details of Equity shares
Particulars Number of shares Parvalue | Amount Date of allotment
Equity Shares 10,000 10.00 ! 0.01 April 23, 2021
Equity Shares 2,00,00,000 10.00 20.00 March 9, 2022
Total 2,00,10,000 20.01
{vii) Details of shareholding of promoters
vear ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Percentage of % of total Percentage of
M omot
S e e Nur::er of (1% oi::t:l numbey change during | Number of shares | number of | change during
bt e the year shares the year
Welspun Corp Lirnited 2,00,10,000 100.00% 0.00% 2,00,10,000 100.00% 100.00%
Total 2.00,10,000 100.00% 2,00,10,000 100.00%
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14{b) Instruments entirely equity in nature:

i} Authorised Preference share capital

As at April 23, 2021
Increase during the period {refer note 42([b))
As at March 31, 2022

Increase durlng the year
As at March 31, 2023

ii} Movement in Preference shares capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

As at April 23, 2021

Issued during the period {refer note 42{b])
As at March 21, 2022

Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2023

{iii} Terms and rights attached to shares Preference shares

Number of Shares  Par value Amount
2,59,90,000 10.00 29.99
2,99,90,000 10.00 29.99
1,50,00.000 10.00 15.00
4,49,90,000 10.00 44,99

Number of Shares  Par value Amount
2,48,15,000 10.00 24.82
2,48,15,000 10.00 24,82
2,01,75,000 10.00 20.17
4,49,90,000 10.00 44.99

The preference shares shall be non-participating in the surplus funds and also in the surplus assets and profits which may remain after the entire capital has been

repaid, on winding up of the Company.

The CORPS shall be convertible in to equity share of the Company any time before March 31, 2036 in the ratio of one equity share of Rs. 10/- each for cne CORPS of
Rs, 10 each fully paid-up. If not converted, the CORPS shall be redeemable at par at the option of the company after March 31, 2030 but before March 31, 2036.

{iv} Shares of the Company held by holding company

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Mo. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Welspun Corp Limited 4,49,90,000 100.00% 2,48,15,000 100.00%
{v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Welspun Corp Limited (the holding company) 4,49,90,000 100.00% 2,48,15,000 100.00%
Particulars Number of par value Amount l:.blate of
shares allotment
CORPS March 9,
2,33,50,000 10.00 23.35 022
CORPS 14,65,000 10.00 1.47 | March 31, 2022
SORPS 1,36,75,000 1000 13.67 | May 20, 2022
2ORPS 15,00,000 10.00 150 | Augusts, 2022
CORPS 50,00,000 10.00 5.00 December 19,
2022
Total 4,49,90,000 44,99

vi] Details of shareholding of promoters

Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Name of the promoter Numberof | % of total number| TEreentage of %oftotal | Percentage of
change during | Number of shares | number of | change during
shares of shares
the year shares the year
Welspun Corp Limited 4,4%,50,000 100.00% 0.00% 2,48,15,000 100.00% 100.00%
Total 4,49,90,000 100.00% 2,48,15,000 100.00%




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Al emounts in Rupees crore, unless atherwise stated)]

Note 15 : Reserves and surplus

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Retainad earnings {refer note below) (14.35) {1.06)
Total reserves and surplus {14.36) {1.06)
Note - Retained earnings: As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Crpening balance [1.06) -
Loss for the period {13.21) {0.67)
Item of other comprehensive income recognised diractly in retained earnings
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations, net of tax 0.0z -
Share issue expenses {0.11) (0.39)
Closing balance {14.36) {1.06)
Other reserves As at As at
March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Cash flow hedging reserve {0.03}
Total other reserves {0.03)
Note - Cash flow hedging reserve
Opening Balance z
Amount recognised in Cash flow hedging reserve during the Year (Net), net of tax [0.03)
Closing Balance {0.03)

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves
Retained Earnings
Retained earnings comprises of prior years as well as current year's undistributed earnings after taxes

Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of bedging instruments
entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on changes in Fair value of the designated portion of the hedging Instruments that are recognised and
accumulated under the heading of cash flows reserve will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or toss or included
as a basts adjustment to the non-financial hedged item.

Mote 15; Borrowings as at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Securad

Non-current borrowings {refer notes below)

Tarm loan from a bank 123.12 70.28

Total non-current borrowings 123.12 70.28

Current borrowings (refer notes below)

Current maturity of long term borrowing 8.25% 0.38

Total current borrowings 8.25 0.38

{i) Nature of security for homowings

Secured by first charge ranking pari passu on hypothecation of entire plant & machinery of tha Company, registered mortgage on leasehold right on land and
secand pari passu charge on the current assets of the company

{il) Terms of repayment and interest

(a) The term loan has quarterly installiments starting from April 30, 2023 and maturing on April 30, 2029 {previous year repayment was starting from January
31, 2023 and maturing on January 31, 2029}

(b} Interest rate on term loan is 9% p.a. { 0.50% above & month State Bank of India MCLR rate).

i

)
e
L



Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts In Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 16 : Borrowings [contd.}

Net debt reconciliation Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 4,68 252
Current Investments 38.57 -
Borrowings (including accrued interest) (131.37) (71.73)
Lease liabilities (current and non-current} (4.14) [4.24)
(92.26) {73.45)
Flnancial assets Financial liabilities
Cashand cash | Current Borrowings | Lease Nabllitles Total
equivalents | investments €] o] (€] = [A]+[B]-{C]-
a) () o)
Cash flow {net} 2.52 (115.48} {112.96}
Inlerest expenses classified under CWIP - (2.19) - (219)
Interest expenses classified under Finance - {0.02) {0.29) (0.31)
costs
Interesi paid 1.07 1.07
Conversion to Equity shares 20.00 20.00
Conversion to Preference shares 24.82 - 24.82
Addition io lease liability during period {3.95) {3.95)
Others 0.07 - 0.07
Net debts as at March 31, 2022 2,52 {70.66) {4.24) {72.38)
Interest accrued as at March 31, 2022 {1.07} {1.07)
Cash flow (net) 2.16 318.44 {60.71} 0.42 {19.69)
Interest expenses classified under CWIP (4.39} {4.39)
[nterest expenses classified under Finance costs (5.29) {0.32) {5.61}
Interast paid 10.75 10.75%
Other non cash adjustments -
Fair valuation gain 0.13 - 0.13
Net debts as at March 31, 2023 4.68 38.57 {131.37) {4.14) {92.26}
Interest accrued as at March 31, 2023
* Includes interest accrued and current maturities of long-term borrowings
Mote 17: Provisions
Non Current, As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Leave encashment {refer note 41{i}}
Gratuity {refer note 41(ii}-{vi}} 0.07 0.01
Total non current provisions 0.07 0.01
As at As at
Current March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Leave encashment {refer note 41(i}) 0.10 0.03
Gratuity (refer note 41{ii}-(vil) $
Total current provisions 0.10 0.03

* amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the company.

/ ML




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alf amounts in Rupees crore, unfess otherwise stated}

Note 18: Trade payables As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note 40) 1.05 -
Trade payables for acceptances 138.90 -
Trade payable to related parties (refer note 35} 3.39 -
Trade payables others 4.30 0.04
Total trade payables 148.64 0,04

Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years| Total
yepr
Undisputed Trade Payables - - - - - - -
{i} Micro enterprises and small entarprises - 1.05 - - - - 1.05
[li} Others 2,92 143.49 1.18 - - - 147.5%
Total 192 144.54 1.18 - - - 148.64
Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for fellowing periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years| Total
MEAr
Undisputed Trade Payables - - - - - -
{i} Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
[liy Others - 0.04 - - - - 0.04
Total - 0.04 < - - - 0.04
Note:

{i} There are no disputed trade payables as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
{il) Unbilled trade payables include accruals which are not classified as provisions under Ind A3 37.

Hote 19: Other financial liabilities

{a) Non Current As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Deposit received 0.12
Total other Non current financial liabilities 0.12
{b) Current As at As at
March 31. 2023  March 31, 2022
Interest accruad but not due on borrowings
Related Parties (Refer Note 35) . 0.61
Others - 0.46
Capital creditors
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises refer note 40) 0.60 0.34
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Related Parties (Refar Note 35} - 2.92
Others 5.79 1.62
Derlvatives designated as hedges - forward contracts 0.04 .
Derivatives not designated as hadges - forward contracts 0.58
Total other current financial liabilities 7.01 £.98
Mote 20; Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade advances 6.21 -
Statutory dues payable 164 0.16
Refund liabilitles 0.70 -
Employee dues payable 0.21 -
Total other current liabilities ¥ 10.76 016

—




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21: Revenue from operations
for the Year ended  For the Period from

on March 31,2023 April 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022
Revenue from contracts with customer
Sale of products
Sale of finished goods 92,15
Sale of traded goods 39.67 -
Total sale of products 131.82 =
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 3.59
Government grants 3.47 -
Total other operating revenue 7.06 -
Total revenue from operations 138.88 -

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture and distribution of TMT Bars and revenue from such products is derived from transfer at a
point in time which is shown under sale of products as above.

Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products with contracted price

For the Year ended  For the Period from
on March 31, 2023 April 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022
Contracted price 133.48 -
Adjustrment for discounts / Incentives / refund liabilities {1.66)
Total sale of products 131.82 =
Note 22: Other income For the Year ended For the Period from
on March 31,2023 /P 23,2021 to
’ March 31, 2022
Interest income from fixed deposits 0.16 0.03
Fair valuation gain on investment measured at fair value through profit and loss 0.2z -
Net gain on sale of current investments 0.01
Tatal other incoma 0.49 0.03
Mote 23: Cost of materlals consumed
For the Year ended For tl_'ne Period from
on March 312023 April 23, 2021 to
- March 31, 2022
Raw materials at the beginning of the year . -
Add: Purchases 149.64
149.64
Less : Raw materials at the end of the year 35.02 -
Total cost of materials consumed 114.62 -
Mote 24: Purchases of stock-in-trade
For th i
For the Year ended or the Period from
onMarch 31,2023 P23, 2021 to
! March 31, 2022
Purchases of stock-in-trade 33.94
Tetal Purchases of stock-in-trade 33.94




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 25: Changes in Inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade & finishad goods

Opening Balance
Finished goods

Closing Balance
Finished goods

Total changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade & finished goods

Note 26: Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity {refer note 41{iii))

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefit expense

Note 27: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depretiation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3(a)}
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {refer note 3(c))
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3(a)}

Total depreciation and amortisation expense
* amounts are below the rounding off norm adopted by the company.
Note 28: Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares

Labour charges

Water and electricity charges

Freight, material handling and transportation
Rental charges

Rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery

- Others
Travel and conveyance
Telephone and communication charges
Legal and professional fees
Forelgn exchange difference {net}
insurance

For the Yearended '* the Period from
March 31, 2023 April 23, 2021 to
on T March 31, 2022
26.57
26.57 =
(26.57) -
Forthe Yearended ' t'.‘e Period from
March31, 2023  Pril23, 2021 to
- ’ March 31, 2022
3.63 0.08
0.19 '
0.07 0.01
0,15 0.01
4.04 0.10
Forthe Yearended 'O i Period from
March31,2023 AP 23,2021 to
- ’ March 31, 2022
413 )
0.14 0.12
. W i
4,27 0.12
For the Yearended '*" the Period from
March31 2023 APl 23,2021t0
e March 31, 2022
212 :
0.60 )
6.92
2.57
0.04
0.27 )
0.20 )
0.01
0.14
0.01 ‘
2.28 0.09
0.70
0.23



Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year anded March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 28 : Other Expenses (contd.)

Printing and stationery

Security charges

Membership and subscription
Payment to auditors {refer note below)
Miscellaneous expenses

Total other expenses
* Amounts are below the rounding off norm adopted by the company.

Note:
Details of payment to auditors excluding taxes, as applicable

As auditor:
Audit fee
Tax Audit

In other capacities:
Certification fees
Re-imbursement of expenses
Total
* Amounts arg below the rounding off norm adopted by the company.

Note 29: Finance costs

Interest on Term loans
Interest and finance charges on lease liabilities {refer note 3{c))
Interest on Acceptances and charges on letter of credit
Interest on debenture
Finance charges

Total finance costs

Less: amount capitalised (see note below)

Finance cost expensed in profit and loss

For the Year ended fr tfillezl;'e;l:: lfxm
onMarch 31,2028 P 23,
March 21, 2022
0,01 -
0.02 -
0.01 -
0.21 0.05
012 -
16.46 0.14
For the Year ended For the Period from
onMarch31,2023 Pl 23,2021 t0
! March 31, 2022
0.16 0.05
0.02 -
0.03
. .
0.21 0.05
For the Year ended For t'.‘e Period from
on March 31, 2023 April 23, 2021 to
! March 31, 2022
9.68 219
0.32 0.29
233 -
- 0.02
0.75 0.03
13.08 2.53
4.39 2.1%
8.69 0.34

Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the

entity’s specific borrowings during the year, in this case 8.34% (March 31, 2022 - 3%).




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30(a): Deferred tax liabilities {net}

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference in WDV of Property, plant & Equipments 2,40 -
Investment in Mutual fund valued at fair value 0.05 -
Government Grant 0.59
Total Deferred Tax Liability 3.04 -
Deferred Tax Assets :
Lease liability {net of Right-Of-Use Asset) 0.07 0.07
Employee benefit obligation 0.03 0.01
Derivative forward contract payable 0.01
Business Losses (current year loss) 5.81 0.03
Total Deferred Tax Assets 5.92 0.11
Deferred Tax Asset 2.88 - *
Deferred Tax Assets {net) recognised 2.88 =:.*

*Deferred tax assets has been recognised only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities owing to the company being in capitalisation phase and previous year
being the year of incorporation.

Movement in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabifities:

Businass Loss Lease llability | Employee benefit | Property, plant Others Net Deferred tax
{net of Right-Of- obligation and equipments assets
Use Asset)
As at April 23, 2021 - -
Charged/iCredited)
to profit and loss {0.03) {0.07) {0.01) - - {0.11)
As at March 31, 2022 {0.03) {0.07) {0.01) 0.00 0.00 {0.11)
Charged/{Credited)
to profit and loss {5.78) - {0.02) 2.40 0.63 {2.77)
As at March 31, 2023 {5.81) {0.07) {0.03) 2.40 0.63 {2.88)




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexad to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless ctherwise stated)

Note 30{b}: Income tax expense

{i} tncome tax expense
Current tax

Deferred tax

Total Income tax expense

{11} Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Profit / (loss) before tax
Tax rate
Tax at normal rate

Unrecognised Deferred tax Asset of previous yearinet)
Total Tax Expense as per Statement of Profit & loss

{ili) Amounts recognised directly in equity

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting pericd and not recognised in net profit or loss or other
comprehensive income but directly debited/ (credited) to equity:

{iv) Tax losses

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised
Patential tax benefit @ 17.16%

{v} Unrecognised tamporary differencas

Temporary differences relating to below items for which deferred tax assets have not been recognised
Employee benefit obligation

Lease liability

Potential tax benefit @ 17.16%

For the Year ended  For the Period from
onMarch 31,2023 April 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022
(2.87)
{2.87)
For the Year ended  For the Period from
on March 31,2023 April 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022
{16.08) {0.67)
17.16% 17.16%
{2.76) {0.11)
{0.11) =
{2.87}
For the Year ended For the Period from
on March 31, 2023 AprHl 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022
For the Yearended  For the Period from
on March 31, 2023 April 23, 2021 to
March 31. 2022
0,23
0.03
For the Year ended For the Perlod from
on March 31,2023  April 23, 2021 to

March 31,2022

A A

0.03
0.41

0.08




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Maotes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Al ormounts in Rupees crore, unless atherwise stoted)

Note 31: Fair value measurements
Financial instruments by category

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL Fvocl Amaortised Cost
Financial assets
Investments

- Equity instrumants 149 - - = -

- Mutual Funds 38.57 - - . -
Security Deposit - s 0.24 . 0.15
Other non-current financial assets = - 244 134
Trade receivables - - 28.76 -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 463 - 252
Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 363 = -
Total financial assets 40.46 - 39.75 - 4.0
Financial liabilities
Borrowing [including accrued interest} - 131.37 - 7172
Trade payables ] 148.64 - 004
Capital creditors - 6.34 - 439
Others:

Deposit received - - 0.12 - -
Derlvatives designated as hedges - forward contracts = 0.04 = - =
Dertvatives not designated as hedges - forward contracts 058 - - - -
Total financial liabilities D.58 0.04 286.52 - 76.66

{i} Fair value hievarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a} recognised and measured at fair value and (b} measured
at amertised cost and for which falr values are disciosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fatr value, the
company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the tabte.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31, 2023

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Financial investments at FVPL
Equity instruments

tutual Funds

38.57

139

1.89
38.57

Total financial assets

38.57

L.B9

4046

Financial liabilities
Derivatives designated as hedges - forward contracts
Derivatives not des| d as hedges - forward contracts

0.04
0.58

0.04
0,58

Total financial liabilities

0.62

0.62

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair va

Jue measurements at March 31, 2022

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31 : Fair value measuremgnts {contd.)
Financlal assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair value are disclosed at March 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Lavel3 Total
Financial Assets
Security Deposit = . 0.24 0.24
Other non-current financial assets - - 144 2.44
Total financial assets - - 0.24 0.24
Financisl liabilities
Borrowing (Including accrued interest) - - 131.37 131.37
Deposit received - - 0.12 0.12
Total financial liabilities - - 131.49 131.49
Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair vale are disclosed at March 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Security Deposit - - 0.15 415
Other non-current financial assets = £ 1.34 1.34
Total financial assets - - 1.49 1.49
Financial liabiltties
Borrowing (including accrued interest) - - 71.73 71.73
Total financial liabilities - - .73 71.73

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to Initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 110 Level 3, as described below.

Level 1: This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAY
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and
rely as litthe as possible on entity-specific estimates. The Company has derivatives which are designated as hedges, derivatives which are not designated as hedges for which all

significant inputs required to Fair value an tnstrument falls under level 2.
Level 3: If one ot more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, This is the case for unlisted securities.

(i) Valuation techniques used to determine fair value:

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- the fair value of unlisted equity instruments are determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

- the use of Net Assets Value ('NAV') for valuation of mutual fund investment. MAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units and will redeem such units of mutual

fund to and from the investors.
. the fair value of forward contracts is determined using forward exchange rates prevailing with Authorised Dealers dealing in foreign exchange.
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Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 32, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unfess athenwise stated)

Note 31 : Fair value measurements {contd.)

{ii!) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3}

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023

Unlisted equity Total
securities
As at April 23, 2021
Fain recognised in profit or loss - -
As at March 31, 2022
Acquisition 168 1.68
Gain { [loss) recognised in proflt or loss 0,21 0.21
1.89 1.8%
Unrealised gain recognised in profit or loss related to assets held at the end of the reporting period
As at March 31, 2023 0.21 021
As at March 31, 2022 = -
{iv] Valuation inputs and relationshlps to fair value
) Significant Probability PtoI‘JahiIity
Particulars Fair value as at | Fair value asat unobservable weighted weighted Sensitivity
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 inputs average as at average a5 at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Unlisted equity shares 1.89 - Risk adjusted 14.00% - | The estimated
discount rate fair vatue would
increase/
{decrease] if
Discount rate
were lower/
{higher)
{v) Valuation processes
The fair value of unlisted equity shares are determined using discounted cash flow analysis by an independent valuer,
{wi) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measurad at amortised cost
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying t Fair value
Financial Assets
Security Deposit 024 024 0.15 0.15
Other non-current financial assets 244 244 134 134
Total 268 268 1.49 1.49
Financial liabilities
Borrowing (Including accrued interest) 131.37 13137 7L.73 TL.73
Deposit received 12 Q.12 - -
Total 131.49 131.49 71.73 .72

a} The carrying amounts of trade payables, cash and cash equivalent, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, Trade receivables and other current financial liabilltles are

considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

b} The fair values and carrying value of borrowings, deposits received, security deposits and other non-current financial assets are materially the same

{vil} Classification of interest income by instrument category

For the Year ended on March 31, 2023

For the Period from April 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022

inceme on fi ial assels 1 at amortised cost

Interest income from fixed deposits

.16

0.n

Total

.03




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees crore, unfess otherwise stated)

Mote 32 : Financial risk rmmanagement

The Company’s principal financial liabilities represents capital creditors and horrowings. The main purpose of these financial Nabilities is to pay for the plant $etup in Anjar,
Gujarat, India. The Company's principal financial assets consists of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, and other financial assets. The company also
holds investments held at fair value through profit and loss

The Company's activities exposes it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, The directors of the Company {considering size of business) oversees the management of these
risks which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk
objectives. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial perfermance of the company, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts
are entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures, Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments, This note
explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed 1o and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Trade receivables, cash & cash Agelng analysis Diversification of bank deposits,
gruivalents, other bank balances and credit imits and letters of credit
other financial assets

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other financial Borrowings maturity and cash flow  |Availability of committed credit lines
liabilities forecasts and borrowing facilities

Market risk — interest rate risk Barrowings Sensitivity analysis Mix of fixed and floating rate

horrowing.

Market risk — forelgn currency risk Trade payables & Other financial Sensitivity analysis Forward foreign exchange contracts
lighility and derlvative contracts

Market risk — security prices risk I tin mutuzl funds Sensitivity analysis Partfolio diversification

{1} Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed 1o
credit rlsk from its operating activities, trade receivable and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments

The Company considers the probability of default upen initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.

a) Trade receivables

Trade recelvables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers Credlt risk has been managed by the Company through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuusly monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account
of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. Exposures of trade receivable (net of allowance] broken intg
agelng bucket is given below:

More than 120
0-120 days davs Total

iarch 31, 2023 2376 - B.75
March 31, 2022 B

Since the company has started its operations In current year, there is ne history of credit loss, The receivables as at year end entirely pertain to related parties where the
prabability of default is assessed as remote. Further, the receivables are not due and Jess than & manths and have been substantially realised subseguently to the year end
Considering the same the expected credit loss is considered to be Nil and no allowances have been recognised on trade receivables as at March 31, 2023 and March 21, 2022

b} Other financial assets

The Company maintains exposure majorly in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and investment in mutual funds. The Company has diversified portfalio of
investment with various number of counterparties which have good credit ratings, good reputation and hence the risk is reduced. Individual risk limits are set for each
counterparty based on financial position, credit rating and past experience. Credit [Imits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the Company.

(1) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial ohligations as they became due The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities {comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities beiow)], by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabifities.

Prudent liquidity risk management Implies maintaining sufficient cash and liquid funds and the avallability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. The liquidity risk is monitored through budgets {comprises of undrawn borrowings below) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basls of expected cash flows by the management presented by the Board of Directors.
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Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the finandal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alf amounts in Rupees crore, unfess otherwise stated]

Mate 32 ; Finandal risk management (contd.)

{a) Financing arrangements
The Campany had access to the following undrawn borrowing and working capital facilities at the end of the reporting period:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Floating rate

Expiring within one year

Borrowing 17.57 78.00
Working capital facility 35.44 -
Total 53.03 78.00

{b} Maturities of financial liabilities:

The tables below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouplngs based on their contractual maturities. All non-derivative financial liabilities, and
derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
slgnificant.

hs at March 31, 2023

Contractual maturities of finandal liabilities <1 Year 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years Total Carrying value
Non-derivatives

Berrowing {includes Interest accrued and current maturities 1845 61,34 5360 3046 17435 131 37
of long-term debt)

Capital Creditors 639 - - = 6.39 6.3%
Trade Payable 148.64 - - . 148.64 143.64
Lease Liability 022 1158 0.50 0.53 12.83 .14
Total non-derivative liabilities 174.20 72.92 64.10 30.99 342.21 290,54
Derivatives

Forward contracts 0.62 - = - 0.62 0.62
Total derivative liabilities 0.62 - - - 0.62 0.52

As st March 31, 2022

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities <1 Year 1- 3 years 3- 5 years »Syears Total Carvying value

Non-derivatives

Borrowing (includes interest accrued and current maturities 7.06 26.35 33.90 2830 9561 7173
of long-term debt)

Capital Creditors 4.89 - - - 4.89 4.89
Trade Payable 0.04 - - 0.04 0.04
Lease Liability 0.42 047 0.50 11.86 13.25 4.24
Total non-derivative liabilities 12.41 26.82 34.40 40.16 113.79 80.90

(1) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wlll fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
Foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and investment price risk

(2} Foreign currency risk
The Campany undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate Auctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed
within approved policy parameters utifising forward foreign exchange contracts.

The Company uses foreign currency forward cantracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments, highly probable
forecast transactions and foreign currency required at the setilement date of certain receivables/payables. The use of foreign currency forward contracts |5 governed by the
Company's strategy approved by the board of directors, which provide principles on the use of such forward contracts consistent with the Company’s risk management policy and
procedures,




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the finandal statements for the year endad March 31, 2023

{4l ormounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 : Financial risk management {contd.}

i} Foreign currency risk exposure

The Campany's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reparting period expressed in equivalent in INR Crore is as follows

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
uUsD uso
Trade payables 5715 -
Other financial liabilities 0.04 -
|Forward contracts {buy foreign currency} (62.61) -

ii} Foreign currency sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial (nstruments and impact on other components of
equity arises from foreign forward exchange contracts, designated as cash flow hedges.

Nat impact on profit § boss before

Net impact on other reserve

tax
As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 | Warch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
USD sensitivity *
INR/USD - Increase by 1% 0.02 - 0.03 -
INR/USD - Decrease by 1% {0.02) - {0.03) =

* Holding all other variable constant,

(b} Interest rate risk

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates arising principally on changes in State Bank of India & month MCLR rates, which expose the

Company to cash flow interest rate risk

As at
| arch 31, 2022 |

{1} mterest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Particulars As at
March 31, 2023
Floating rate borrowings (including accrued interest) 13137

7L.73
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Anjar TMT 5teel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crove, unless otherwise stated)}
Note 32 : Financial risk management {contd.)

(i) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower intarest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rate,

impact on profit before tax| impact on profit before tax

‘March 31, 2023 * ‘March 31, 2022 *
Increase by 50 basis points (March 22: 50 basis points) {0.66) {0.36}
Decrease by 50 basis points {(March 22: 50 basis points) 0.66 0.36

* Holding all other varlable constant.

{c} Security prices
i) Exposure

The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in mutual funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the future
market values of these investments.
In order to manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio in accordance with the limits set by
the risk management policies.

i) Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of 1% increase in price of mutual funds.

Impact on profit before tax
March 31, 2023

Impact on profit before tax
March 31, 2022

Increase in rate 1%
Cecrease in rate 1%

0.39
0.39)

{IV] impact of hedging activities
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; conseguently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange
rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utillsing forward contracts and derivative contracts.

{i) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position:

As at March 31, 2023

. MNominal Value Carrying amount of hedging instrument Maturity .
H
Tipsofhedga and sk Y=o, Liability Asset Liability date edge ratio
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange risk
Forward contract 2.89 - 0.04 | May-23 1:1
{ii} Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance.
As at March 31, 2023
Line item affected in
i hedgi A lassified f
: Change in the Va'"_e of X cdeing Hedpge ineffectiveness mount rec as? adfgom statement of profit and
Typa of hedge and risks | instrument recognised in nther N | cash flow hedging reserve
o recognised in protit or loss i loss because of the
comprehensive income to profit or loss . i
reclassification
Cash flow hedge
Forelgn exchange risk {0.03) - - Other expense

There are no hedges as at March 31, 2022.

The Company uses forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments, highly
probable forecast transactions and forelgn currency required at the settlement date of certaln receivables/payables. The use of forward contracts
is governed by the Company’s strategy approved by the board of directors, which provide principles on the use of such forward contracts
consistent with the Company’s risk managerment policy.

The Company’'s hedging policy only allows for effective hedge relationships to be established. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the Inception
of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the
hedged item and hedging instrument. The Company enters into hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument match
exactly with the terms of the hedged ltem, and so a qualitative assessment of effectiveness is performed. If changes in circumstances affect the
terms of the hedged item such that the critical terms no longer match exactly with the crittcal terms of the hedging instrument, the Company uses
the hypothetical derivative method 1o assess effectiveness. Ineffectiveness is recognised on a cash flow hedge and net investment hedge where
the cumulative change In the designated component value of the hedging instrument exceeds on an absolute basis the change in value of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. In hedges of foreign currency forecast sale and purchase transactions, hedges of interest rate risk and
hedges of net investment, as applicable, this may arise if:

{i) The critical terms of the hedging instrument and the hedged item differ {i.e. nominal amounts, timing of the forecast transaction, interest resets

changes from what was originally estirnated), or
{ii) Differences arise between the credit risk inherant within the hedged item and the hedging instrument. There were no ineffactiveness
recognised in the statement of profit and loss dufing March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

=




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unfess otherwise stated)

Mote 32 : Financial risk management (contd.)

(i) Movements in cash flow hedging reserve

Risk category Forelgn currency risk

As at March 31, 2022 -
Changes in fair value of forward contracts (0.03)
Income tax on amount recognised in hedging reserve 0.01
As at March 31, 2023 {0.02)

Note 33 : Capital management

{a) Risk management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

-safeguard their ability to continue as a going cencern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and

-rnaintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the fallowing gearing ratio:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Net debt 88.63 73.45
Total equity 50.62 43.77
Net debt equity ratio 1.75 1.631

Net Debt includes total borrowings (including current maturities) and lease liabilities net of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and
current investments

{i} Loan covenants

The Company has borrowings as at the end of the reporting period, however, as per the terms of bank sanction letter debt covenants are not
applicable for current flnancial year.

(b} Dividends
The Company has not declared dividends in the current reporting period.

Note 34 : Segment information

{i) Description of segments and principal activities

The Company's chief aperating decision makers are its Board of Directors of Company who examines the Company's performance only from the
product perspective and has accordingly, identifled only one reportable segment which is manufacturing, processing and dealing in TMT Bar, in
accordance with Ind AS 108.

{ii) The chief operating decision makers primarily uses a measure of profit/ (Joss} before tax as in¢luded In the internal management report to
assess the performance of the operating segment which is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

{iii} Revenue from major customers:

Revenues of approximately Rs. 124.41 (31 March 2022 Nil) are derived from 5 external customers. These revenues are attributed to the India
segment.

For the year ended Number of Amount % of revenue from
customers oneratians

March 31, 2023 5 124.41 90%

March 31, 2022 MNA 0%

{iv] The company is domiciled in India. All revenue from contracts are from within India during the year ended March 31, 2023. There was no

revenue for period from April 23, 2021 to March 31, 2022 as company had not commenced its operations in that period.

{vJThe total of non-current assets are located only in India as at March 31, 2023.




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stoted)
Note 35; Related party transactions

{a) Entities having significant influence

influence on Welspun Corp Limited, holding company]

Name Type Ownership interest Ownership interest
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Welspun Group Master Trust {entity has significant Significant influence 44.76% 44.86%

(b) Holding company

Name Type Owmership interast Ownership interest
Moarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Wel Carp Limited Heolding company 100% 100%

{c) Key management personnel

Name

Nature of rek

hip

M. Anuj Burakia
Mr. Mchan K
tdr. Devendra Patil

h 'y
ainan

Ir. Harish Chandra Gupta
fr. Neeraj Kant

Mr. Sandip Chottara

Mr. Arpit Bhandari

Non executive, Non-independent Director (w.e.f, June 01, 2021
and resigned on May 20, 2022)

Non executive, Non-independent Director

Non executive, Non-independent Director (resigned on July 14,

2022)

Nan executive, Non-independent Director
Whole-time Director (w.e.f. May 10, 2023}
Chief Finanicial Officer (w.e.f. May 20, 2022)
Company Secretary (w.e.f. May 20, 2022}

{d} List of other entities over which key management personnel or relatives of such personnel exercise significant influence or control and with whom
transaction have taken place during the current year or previous year:

Welspun India Umited

Welspun Corp Limited

Welspun Metallics Limited

Welspun Di Pipes LUimited

MGN Agro Properties Private Limited
Welspun Global Brands Limited
Welspun Realty Private Limited
Welspun Anjar 5ez Limited

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Welspun Spectialty Solutions Lirnited
Welsnun Enternrises Limited

{e]l Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

For the year ended on For the Pariod from
March 31, 2023 April 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022
1} Purchase of goods and expenses incurred
Welspun Corp Limited 52.54 -
Welspun India timited 0.15 -
Welspun Global Brands Limited 0.03
Welspun Realty Private Limited 0.04 -
Welspun Anjar Sez Limited 0.06 -
Welspun Captive Power Generaticn Limited 6.46 P
59.28 -

Total Purchase of goods and expenges incurred

0 JLCL /




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alf amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 35: Relatad party transactions (contd.}

For the year ended on

March 31, 2023

For the Period from
April 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022

2} Additions to Capital Work in Progress
Welspun Corp Limited

Welspun Metallics Limited

Welspun india Limited

Welspun Di Pipes Lirnited

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

180
0.42
0.01
0.03
0.14

3.08
0.03

*

1.20

Total Additions to Capital Work in Progress

2.40

4.31

3) Finance cost
MGN Agro Properties Private Limited

0.02

Total finance cost

0.02

4) Issue of 6.50% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs)
Welspun Corp Limited

24 82

Total Issuance of 6.50% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs}

24.82

5) 6.50%% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs} comverted to 7.75% Non-
cumulative, Optionally Redeemable Preference Shares (CORPS)

Welspun Corp Limited

24.82

Total conversion of 6.509 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) to 7.75% Non-
¢ lative, Optionally Red ble Preference Shares (CORPS)

24.82

6] 5% Non Convertible Debenture
MGN Agro Properties Private Limited

3.00

Total issuance of 5% Non Convertible Debenture

71 5% Non Convertible Debenture repaid
MGMN Agro Properties Private Limited

3.00

Total repaymeant of 5% Nan Convertible Deb

3.00

8} Issue of Equity Share
Welspun Corp Limited

001

Total Issuance of Equity Share

0.01

4} Issue of 6.25% Optionally Convertible Debentures

Welspun Corp Limited

20.00

Tatal iss a of £.25% Optionally Convertible Debentures

20.00

10) 6.25% Optionally Convertible Debentures converted to Equity Shares

Welspun Corp Limited

20.00

Total 6.25% Optignally Convertible Debentures conversion to Eguity $hares

20.00

11] Reimb t of exp paid
Welspun Corp Limited

0.42

Total Reimbursement of & paid

0.42

12} Issue of 7.75% Convertible Non-cumulative Optionally Redeemable Preference

Shares {CORPS)

Welspun Corp Limited

20.17

Total issue of 7.75% Convertible Non-cumulative Optionally Redeemable Praference
Shares {(CORPSH

20.17

12} Purchase of eauity shares of Welspun Cantive Power Generation Limited

Welspun Corp Lirnited

1.69

Total purchase of equity shares of Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

1.69

141 Reimbursment of

Welspun Corp Limlted

0.45

Total reimburse t of

0.45




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35: Related party transactions (contd.)

For the year ended on For the Period from
March 31, 2023 April 23, 2021 to
March 31, 2022

15) Sale of product { other income
Welspun Corp Limited 50.18
Welspun Metallics Limited 1.31 -
Welspun India Limited 0.05 -
Welspun Di Pipes Limited 0.10 -
Welspun Anjar Sez Limited 016 -
Welspun Specialty Solutions Limited 0.03
Welspun Enterprises Limited 0.23
Total sale of product / other income 52.06 -
16) Sale of material chubbed under CWIP
Welspun Corp Limited 0.36 -
Welspun Metallics Limited 0.42 -
Welspun Di Pipes Limited 0.12 -
Total sale of material clubbed under CWIP 0.90 -

Note : Amount is inclusive of applicable taxes
Directors of the Company are also employed by the other group company and they have not been paid remuneration accordingly.

il Disclosure of closing balances:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1) Trade Payables
Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited 3.28
Welspun India Limited 0.11
Total trade payables 3.39 -
2) Other Financial Liabilities
Woelspun Corp Limited - 241
Welspun India Limited = ..
Welspun Di Pipes Umited = 110
MGM Agro Properties Private Umited = 0.02
Total Other Financial Liabilities - 3.53
3} Equity Share Capital
Welspun Corp Limited 20.01 20.01
Total Enulty Share Capital 20.01 20.01
4} 7.75% Convertible Non-C lative Optionally Red ble Preference Share
Welspun Corp Limnited 44.99 24.82
Total preference share capital 44.99 24.82
5) Trade receivables
Welspun Corp Limited 27.06 -
Welspun DI Pipes Limited 0.14 E
Walspun Metallics Limited 122 -
Welspun Anjar Sez Uimited 0.11 .
Welspun Enterprises Limited 0.23
Total trade receivabl 28.76 -
&) Investment in equity shares
Welspun Captive Power Generstion Limited 189
Total investment in equity shares 1.89 -

(g) Terms and conditions
Al transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable through banking channels.

ﬂﬂ.




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 36: Contingent liability
There are no contingent liabtlities as at March 31, 2023 and as at March 31, 2022,

Note 37: Commitments

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances):
Froperty, plant and equipment (net of capital advances: 0.04 {March 31, 2022: 12.46]) 10.10

62.32

Note 38: Earning/(Loss) per equity share

For the period from

Forithe yearepded on April 23, 2021 to Mareh 31,
March 31, 2023 2022
Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company {13.21) {0.67)
Weighted average nurmber of equity shares outstanding during the period 2,00,10,000 12,66,202
Basic and diluted loss per share {Rs.} (6.60} 15.29)
MNominal value of an equity share [Rs. ] 10.00 10.00

Note: Since there is a loss for the year ended on March 31, 2023 and period April 23, 2021 to March 21, 2022, potential equity shares are not considered as

dilutive and hence dilutad EPS is same as Basic EPS.




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Motes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 39: Note on code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the cantributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The draft
rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 have been released by the Ministry of Labour and Employ t on No ber 13, 2020. The Company is in the process of assessing the
additional impact on provident fund contributions and on gratuity Tiability contributions and will complete their evaluation and give appropriate impact in the financial statements

in the period in which the rules that are notified become effective,

Note 40; Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Disclosure of amount due to suppliers under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act}™ is as under:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Principal amount dug to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 1.65 0.34

interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end = =

Total smount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end. 1.65 0.34

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 0.28 -

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the

year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day

during the year ’

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day

during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unitil such date when the interest dues above

are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED

Act

Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises 1.65 .34

Note 41: Employee benefit obligati

{1} Leave obligations
The leave obligations caver the Company's liability for earned leave. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur

{ii} Post-employment obligations - gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of
continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen day wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 5ot months, based on the rate of wages last drawn
by the employee concerned. The gratuity planis a unfunded plan.

This defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk.

{iii} Batance sheet amounts - gratuity

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the mavements inthe net defined benefit obligations over the year are as follows:

Present value of
obligations
Apri 23, 2021 = - .
Current service cost 0.01
Interest expense/{income}
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 0.01

-

Ramgasurements
Experience (gains)flosses
Gainfloss from change in financial assumptions =
Experience losses

Loss from change in financial assumptions

Loss from change in demographics assumptions

Total t recognised in other prehensive income =

Benefit payment
Contribution paid e
March 31, 2022 0.01

Current service cost
Interest expensef{income)

Total amount recognised in profit or boss 0.07
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{AN amounts in Rupees crore, unless atherwise stated)

Note 41: Employee benefit obligations {contd.}

Remeasurements

Expertence {gains)/losses

Gainfloss from change in finandal assumptions
Experience lpsses

{Gains] / Loss from change In financial assumptions
[Gains) / Loss from change in demograpbics assumptions
Total d in other comprehe income

+ i 2

Benefit payment
Contribution paid
March 31, 2023

* Amounts are below the rounding off norm adopted by the company.
The net liabilities disclosed abave relating to unfunded plans are as follows:

Present value of
ohligations
{0.02}
(0.02)
0.07

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of unfunded obligations 0.07 o001
Fair value of plan assets i -
Deficit of unfunded plan 0.07 0.01
Non-current (refer note 17) 0.07 0.01
Current [refer note 17) .. N
(iv) Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.48% 7.27%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%
{v) Sensitivity analysis
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Assumptions Increase in tion Rs. Decrease in assumption Rs.
Change in As at As at As at As at
assumption (%) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 1% {0.01) - 0.01 .
Salary growth rate 1% 0.01 b (0.01) *

* Amounts are below the rounding off norm adapted by the company.

{vi) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligationis

10 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits is as fallows:

Between Batween

i Over 5 Total
Particulars Lass than a year 1.2 years 2.5 vears wer 5 years
March 31, 2023
Defined benefit obligations- Gratuity 0.01 0.02 0.03
March 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligations- Gratuity 0.05 0.05
Mote 42: Other finandial instruments
a. 6.25% Optlonally Convertible Debentures (QCDs)
iIm in 6,25% Optionally Convertible Debentures Number of Par value Amount

Debentures

Issued, subscribed and paid up OCDs
As at April 23, 2021 . i ;
Issued during the period 2,00,00,000 10.00 20.00
Converted during the period 10.00 (20.00)

A5 at March 31, 2022

{2,00,00,000)

Chartcrzg
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Al amounts in Rupees crore, unfess atherwise stated]}

Note 42: Other financial instruments {contd.)

ii) Terms and rights attached to Convertible Debentures

Category Canversion option
anytime within 24 months from the date of allotment of OCDs,
issue of 20,000,000 6.25% Optionally Convertible Debentures into 1 equlty share for every 1 OCD

-6.25% Optionally Convertible Debentures {OCDs) have par value Rs. 10 each. The OCDs are issued at 6.25% interest.

“The OCDs ¢an be converted at the option of the Company into Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

-Canversion Ratio 1:1

—Tenar of OCOs : IF OCDs are not convertad into equity shares of the Company within the period of 24 months from the date of sllotrment, then OCOs shall be compulsorily
redeemable at the end of 8 years with an accumulated interest @ 6.25% p.a

- Interest payment: (nterest as mentioned above, shall be payable only in case of redemption of OCDs. [T OCDs are converted into equity, no interest shall accrue or paysble.

ili} Conversion of OCDs into Equity shares
During the pericd April 23, 2021 to March 31, 2022, 20,000,000 6.25% Optionally Convertible Debentures {OCDs| were Issued and converted to Equity shares.

. 6.50% Compulsarily Convertible Debentures {CCDs)

M L o " .
i) in 6.50% p ily Convertible Debentures Number of Par value Amount
Debentures
Issued, subscribed and paid up CCDs
As at April 23, 2021 - - -
Issued during the period 2,48,15,000 10.00 24.82
Converted during the period (2,48,15,000) 10.00 {24.82)
As at March 31, 2022 - 5
ii} Terms and rights attached to Conwvertible Debentures
Category Conversion option
Anytime within the tenure of CCDs into one 7 75% Convertible
Issue of 24,815,000 6,50% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures Non-Cumulative Opticnally Redeemable Preference Share
{CORPS) for every 1 CCD

-6.50% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {CCDs) have par value Rs. 10 each. The CCDs are issued at 6.50% interest.

.The CCDs can be converted at the option of the Company (nte 7.75% Convertlble Non-Cumulative Optionally Redeernable Preference Share {CORPS) of Rs.10/- each fully patd-up
-Conversion Ratio 1:1

-Tenor of CCOs : 8 years

iii). Conversion of CCDs into Preference shares
buring the period Aprll 23, 2021 to March 31, 2022 , 24,815,000 6 50% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {CCDs) were issued and conwverted to 7.75% Corwertible Non-
cumulative Optionally Redeemable Preference Shares.

¢. 5.00% Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs)

i} Movement in 5.00% Non Convertible Debentures Number of

Par value Amount
Dehentures
Issued, subscribed and paid up NCDs
As at April 23, 2021 - .
Issued during the period 30,00,000 10.00 3.00

Repaid during the period {30,00,000) 10.00 {3.00)
As at Mareh 31, 2022 - .
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Motes annexed to and forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(AN amounts in Rupees crore, unfess otherwise stated)
MNote 42: Other financial instruments [contd.)
i) Terms and rights attached to Convertlble Debentures

Category

[issue of 3,000,000 5.00% Non Convertible Debentures

| Canverslon option
| Non convertible

-5.00% Mon Convertible Debentures (NCDs} have parvalue Rs. 10 gach. The NCDs will be issued at 5.00% interest.

- NCD will be unsecured.
-Tenor of NCDs : upte March 31, 2022,

d. The term boans (l.e. including optionally convertible deb

and

which they were obtained in the period ended March 31, 2022, except for the following case:

ity convertible debenture, both issued on right basis) have been applied for the purposes for

Nature of the fund raised

Name of the lender

Amount diverted

Optionally Convertible Debentures

Welspun Steel
Limited

2.2

Purpose for which Purpose for which
amount was amount was utilised
sanctioned

Repayment of Short-
term lpani.e Non-

o convertible

Eapstaksation debentures issued on

private placement
basts

Further, an amount of Rs, 3.87 crore is pending for utilization as at March 21, 2022 and is included under ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ and ‘Bank deposits with more than 12

manths maturity’ in the financial statements.

[e) The company has used funds raised on short-term basis {i.e. Non-convertible debentures issued on private placement basis) aggregating Rs. 2.2 crore for long-term purposes

in the period ended March 31, 2022,
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{Alf amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 43
a. Financial ratios
Curr P Vari i
Sr Ratio Numerator Denominator ent revious | Varlance In Remarks
Year period %
1 Current ratio Current assets Current Increase in ratio mainly due to increase
{times) liabilities 1.04 036 185%)|in current assets.
Debt-equity Total Debt . Increase in ratio mainly due to Increase
2 Total equit
ratio (times) {Note 1) T8 ey 2.60 161 51%|in borrawings.
Debt service
3 coverage ratio Earnings for Dabt Debt Service Increase In ratio mainly due to incresse
(times) service {note 2) {note 3} {0.08) {0.11) 299N borrowings
Average Decrease in ratio mainly due to incurring
Return on Net {oss for the year
4 aquity (%) / period Y Shareholders -27.99% -3.06% 814%|loss for the year, this being first year of
q Equity operations,
Invento
S turnove?ratio Cost of Goods Sold Inventory NA& (note Increase in ratio due to increase in COGS,
{times) {note 4) 1.89 7) 100% this being first year of operations.
Trade i i i
receivables Revenue from Trade Increase in ratio due to increase n
6 turnover ratio operations Receivable NA {note revenue, this being first year of
(times} 4.83 7 100¢% | PPerations.
Trade payable Increase in ratip due to increase in
7| turnover ratio Purchases Trade Payable NA purchases, this being first year of
{times} 1.27 {note 7} 100%| pperations.
Net capital Revenue from Working Capital Increase in ratio due to increase in
8 | turnover ratio operations fnote S}S NA revenue, this being first year of
{times} P 20.22 {note 7) 100% | operations.
Dec i i i Incurri
Met Profit ratio Net loss for tha year| Revenue from MA (note rease in ratio mallnly 1‘:|ue t.u mCTng
k] (%) / period operations lass for the year, this being first year of
° P Q51% 7} 100% | operations.
Return on Earnings before Capital Increase in ratio mainly dug to incurring
10| capital 1nteresisan d tax Employed loss for the year, this being first year of
m Y te 6 rations.
employed {%) (note 6) 0.07% 0.32% 115524 operati
Return on Earnings before Increase in ratio mainly due to incurring
11| % . arning d Total Assets loss for the year, this being first year of
investment (%) interest and tax .2.09% 0.30% 602%| aperations.
Notes:

1 Total Gcbt = Non-current borrowings and Current borrowings
2 Earning for debt service = Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortisations + Interest

3 Debt service = Interest and principal repayments including lease payments.
4 Cost of Goods Sold = Cast of material consumed + Purchases of stock-in-trade + Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-In-trade and

work-in progress

5 Working capital =current assets minus current liabilities

& Capita! employed = tangible net warth + total debt + deferred tax liability.

7 Since, the Company does not have any operations, purchase/sale of goods, inventory, trade receivable, trade payable relating to operating
acthvities in the previous period, the following ratios are not applicable for the previous period:
-Inventory turnover ratic
-Trade receivable turnover ratio
-Trade payable turnover ratio
-Net capital turnover ratio

-Net profit ratio
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alf amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Noate 43 [contd.)

b. Going concern
The management has made an assessmant on the basis of the financial ratios ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and has not noted any material uncertainty that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fatl due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

c.  Core Investment Companies (CIC)
Management has assessed that there are three Core Investment Comnpanies {CIC) in the Group {'Companies in the Group’ is as defined in
Master Direction - Core Investment Companies [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended).

d. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule I

{i) Details of benami property held

Mo proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and Rules mada thareunder.

Cha rlc;eij A a ::‘\__\
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43 {contd.}

{ii) Borrowing secured against current assets

The company has borrowings from banks and financials institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

Amount
discl
Name of the Bank /| Aggregate working [ Nature of Current Quarter s o:.:d as Amount as
Financial capital limits Asset offered as P per books of | Difference | Reasons for difference
. . . ended guarterly
institution sanctioned Security account
return /
statement
31-Dec-22 24.14 {5.15) 29.29
Trade Difference is on
State Bank of India 284,00 Receivable, Trade account of finalisation
& IDFC First Bank "7 |Payables and entries passed after the
Inventory submission to the bank.
31-Mar-23 {33.62) {39.00) 5.38

The company did not file quarterly report or statements with bank for quarters ended June and September 2022 as the company had not
utilised any sanction during those quarters. The company had filed quarterly returns or statements for the quarter ended December 2022 and
March 2023 which are not in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts. The company is in the process of filing the revised quarterly
report or statement for the quarter ended March 2023,

(i) Wilful defaulter

The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
{iv) Relationship with struck off companies

The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Campanies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

{v) Compliance with number of layers of companles

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

{vi] Compliance with approved scheme(s} of arrangements

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which bas an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.
{vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries}
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries




Anjar TMT Steel Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated}

Note 43 {contd.)

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{Ukimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

{viii) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

{ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

{x} Valuation of PP&E (including Capital work-in-progress} and Right-of-use asset

The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress) and Right-of-use asset during the current
or previous year.

{xi} Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The Company does not own any immovable properties. Further properties where the company is the lessee, the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the Company.

(xii) Registration of charges or satlsfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

{xiii) Utilisatlon of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions

The borrawings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were
was taken except for INR 0.49 crores which is pending for utilisation and are included under cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2023
{March 21, 2022 - Nil}
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